e

EPl General Partner Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

LRI

LSGN18FU

il

FRIDAY

L23 30/09/2016 232

COMPANIES HOUSE

Company Registration No 04863075 (England and Wales)




EPI General Partner Limited

Company Information

Diractors J Furber
| P Laming
R WlLewis
R W I Wilkinson

Company number 04963075

Berkeley Syuare House
8th Floor

Berkeley Square
London

W1J 6DB

Registered office

Auditors Kingston Smith LLP
Devonshire House
80 Goswell Road
London
EC1M 7AD




EP{ General Parther Limited

Contents
Page

Strategic report 1
Directors’ report 2
Direclors’ responsibiities statement 3
Independent audttors’ repart 4-5
Profit and loss account 6
Group balance sheet 7
Company balance sheet: 8
Group staternent of changes in equity g
Company statement of changes in equity 10
Consolidated statement of cash flows 1
Notes to the financial statements 12 -21




EP| General Partner Limited

Strategic Report
For the year ended 31 December 2015

The directors present the strategic report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Fair review of the business .

During the year, the company continued to be the general pariner of Eurcpean Prapedy investors (General
Partner) L.P, a Limiled Parinership which has an interest in European Property Investors LP {the Fund"),
The investmant pencd for the Fund closed 1n December 2007 As détaled n the profit and loss account the
group ncurred a £8 2m reduction m Wriover recognised In previous years as, a result of the clawback
provistans of the Fund, Limited Partnership Agreement {LPA), As a resuft of this pravision the group has net
hablliies al the balance sheel date None of this loss 15 attnbutable 1o the share holders of the company.

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The principal risk facing the group 15 poor investment perfarmance The fulure healtth of the busmess 1s
dependent upon good investment performance, if (for whateyer reason) assets do not increase then this
could Jeopardize the fulurs of business profits This sk is minimal due to the overall profilabilty of the group,
which has received returns in excess of the onginal Investment.

Future developments

On 18 Apnl 2015 the Fund, which consttutes the sole investment of the group, expired and begun to be
wound down The directors consider that the lquidation of the fund will take more than 12 menths and
consequently, the financial staternents been prepared on a gaing concern basts,

Key performance indicators

The KPis of the group are the return on ther mnvestitent In the Fund, as indicated by the income and
distributable yeld, the internal rate of refurn from the Fund and the net asset value of ther nvestment-in the
Fund The-group monltor peformance its perfformance aganst ihese KPis on a quarlery basis

On behalf of the hclard

I P Laming
Director

Ry Stpﬁ:m‘acr 2oi
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EPI General Partner Limited

Directors' Report
For the year ended 31 December 2015

The directors present their annual report and finahcal stafements for the year ended 31 December 2015,

Principal activities

Dunng the year, the company conlinued o be the general pariner of European Properly Investors (General
Pariner) L P, a Limiled Partnership which has an interest In European Property Invesiors LF (“the Fund").
The investment penod for the fund closed in December 2007.

Directors
The directars who held office during the year and tp to the date of slgnature of the financial statements were

as follows

J Furber

| P Laming

R W Lewis

R W[ Wilkinson

Resufts and dividends
The results for the year are sel out on page 6

Future developments
in accordance with section 414C(11) of the Companles Act 2006, the directors have: chosen to include
information about future developments in the Strategic Report,

Auditors
The auditors, Kingston Smith LLP, are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companigs Act

2006

Statement of disclosure to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report [s aware, there ls no relevant
audit Information ‘of which the company's auditors are unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have
laken all the necessary steps that they cught to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of
all relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

On behalf of the board

- rareTy s v .
B

[P Laming
Director

22 Sepfember foie
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EPI General Partner Limited

Directors' Responsibilities Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

The directors are respensible for prepanng the Annual Reperf and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the diractors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have.elecled to prepare the group and parent company financial statements i accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice Under company lsw the direclors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the stale of affars of
the group and parent company and of the profit or loss of the group for that pericd. In praparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to’

- select sultable acgounting policies and then apply them consistently,

« make judgements and acgcounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;:

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been fallowed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained In the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless It Is ihappropriate {o presume that
the group and parent company will continue i business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting fecords that are sufficient to show and explain
the group's and the parent company’s transaétions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financl position of the group and parent company and enable’them 1o ensure that.the financial siatements
comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group
and naren! company-and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preveniion and detecton of fraud and
other imegularities
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EP1 General Partner Limited

Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of EPI General Partner Limited

We have audted tHe financial statements of EPI General Partner Limited for the year ended 31 December
2015 set out on pages 6 to 21, Thé financial reporiing framework that has been apphed in thelr preparation 18
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting
Practice). including Financial Reportimg Standard 102.

This repori is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Panl 16 of
the Compames Act 2006 Our audt work has been undertaken sa that we migh! slate to the company's
members those matlers we afe required to state to them (n an auditors' report-and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent peimitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to enyone other than the
company and the company's’members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Direclors' Responsibilttes Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view, Qur
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statéments in accordance with applicable law
and Infemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland] Those standards require us to comply with the
Audtting Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audiors :

Scope of the d@ud!t of the financlal statements

Ah audit involves oblaining evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures i the financal statements-sufficient
ta give reasonable assurance that the financlal stalements are free flom malenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or emar. This mcludes an assessment of, whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the group's and the parent company's circumstances and have been conglstently applied and adequately:
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant dccounting estimates mads by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and noninancial information in
the Annual Report to identdfy material inconsistencies with the audited financia! statements and to identify any
information that is apparently malerally incosrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audd. if we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our repori.

Opinion on financlal statements
In our opinion the finansial statements
- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
2015 and of iis profil for the year then ended;
« have been properly prepared in accordance wath United Kingdom Generally Accepfed Accounting
Practice, and
» have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Repor fof the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the findncial slatements
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EP! General Partner Limited

Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)
To the Members of EPI General Partner Limfted

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing lo report in respect of the following malters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report {o you i, In our opinion

= adequate’accounting records havé not been kept by the-parent company, or relurns adequate for our
audit have not been recelved from branches nol visited by us, or

« the parent company financial stalements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, oy~

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audrt

Thomas Moore (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf.of Kingston Smith LLP %%}W 2olh

Chartered Accountarits

Statutory Auditor Devonshire House
80 Goswell Road
London
ECtM 7AD
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EPI| General Partner Limited

Consohdated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015

Notes €000

Turnover 3 {(8,158)
Admimistrative expenses (29)
Operating loss. —{8—.;3;)
Change In fair value of Investmants 6 (2,036)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation {10,223)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 7 -
Less after taxation (10,223)

Loss for the financial year is aftributable fo:

- Owners of the parenf company {5}
- Non-controlling interests (10,218}
(;l 0,223)

2014
€000

{17,090)

(18)

(17,108)

(2,118)

{19,226)

1

(19,225)

(19,222)

(19,225)

The profit and loss account has been prepared on the basls that all operations are continuing operatons.
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EPI General Partner Limited

Group Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Notes €000 €000 €000 €000
Fixed assets
Investments 8 2,816 6,606
Current assets
Deblors 11 4,172 4171
Cash at hank and n band &5 16

4,237 4,187

Creditors: amounts falling due within 12
one year (4.255) (4,179)
Net cument (habilities)/assets {18) 8
Total assets less current hiabilities 2,798 6,614
Provisions for liabdities 13 {20,389) (11,697)
Net liabilities (17,591) {5.083)
Capita! and reserves
Profit and (oss reserves - [
Minarity interests (17,591) (5.088)
Total equity {17.591) {5,083)

P —— ———rt—am— s
_ ———

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorsed for issue on . 2 2 Seakémber 20{4
and are signad on ts behalf by:

[

i P Lamung )

Director
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EPI| General Partner Limited

Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2015

2015
Notes €000
Current assets
Deblors 1 12
Creditors: amounts failing due within 12
one year {12)

Net current assets

Capital and reserves
Proft and loss reserves

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorlsed for issue on A4, -Sﬂp(id/lc_la:r‘ ZolE

and are signed on its behalf by

-

[ P Laming
Director

Company Registration No, 04963075

€000

2014
€000

ek

(€)

€000

.

.

Page 8



g afey

{18G°71)

Rt

(1L8S°2L) - -
{1e5) (1es) - -
¥52'L) (pse'h) - -
(gzz'ol)  {giz'or)  (9) (8)
{eso's)  (gg0's) S §
(ov} (op) - -
(¢¥2) (2#2) - -
Gzl (zzesl)  (g) )
Lzl 12r'p) - -
0002 0003 0003 000>
pL=T T SaAIDSAI
Buijjonuos SS0|
fej0L, =uoN Aynba ejo) pue jyo.d

sejoN

§10zZ Jequiaoaq L Ik aauejeg

s)seleps Auolil o} suannqLysiq

saUBIDISqNS

a} pajnquiuoa epded Jo sjseisiyl Quoup o} uatileday
1eak ay; Joj swoou saisuays.duios 210} pue sso7
i§1L0Z 13GqLuadag ¢ papua pouad

Y10z Jequadag Lg je saurieqg

sisasajtl Ajuounw o} suounguisiy

sgheipisgns

O} pamaguuoD [eydes (o sjsauajul Auourn o} JuswAeday
1eah 3y} 10} SLWioaUl easusYRIILLCO |B]0] pue 8507
PL0Z Jequiadag (g pepua pollag

vioz Atenuep | 3o asuejeg

GL0Z Joquwasaq L pepus JeaA el Jo4
Aunb3 w ssbueyn jo awaele)g dnolio

pajlwI Jouped [eisues |43




EP| Genera! Partner Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Balarice at 1 January 2044

Period ended 31 December 2014:
Loss and tatal comprehansive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014

Period ended 31 December 2015:
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

Notes

Profit and
loss
reserves
€000
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EPl General Partner Limited

Consoldated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Investing activities

Distributions paid to minonty Interests
Return of capital contnbetions from
investments

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Financing activities
Repayment to minonty interests of capital
contributed to subsidiades

Net cash used in financing activities

Notes

17

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash ahd cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equlvalents at end of year

2015
€000

{531)

1,754

{1,754)

€000

580

1,223

{1.754)

49

2014 :
€000 €000 |
40
(40)
247
207
(247)
(247
16
16
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EPI General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1  Accounting policles

Company information

EP1 General Partrior Linited (“the Company"} 1s a imited company incorporated in England and Wales.
The registered office Is Berkelay Square House, 8th Floor, Betkeley Square, London, W1J 6DB,

1.4 Accounfing convention
These financial statements-have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financlal Reporling
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland” (‘*FRS 1027) and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2008

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are the first financial statements of
EP{ Genetal Partner Limited prepared In accordance with FRS 102, The Financial Reporiing Siandard
applicable 1n the UK and Repubfic of lreland The date of transition to FRS 102'was 1 January 2014 The
reported financial position and financlal performance for'the previous perod are not affected by the
transition to FRS 102.

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented lts own profit and loss
account and related notes, The Company's loss for the year was €5,000 (2014. €3,000)

1.2 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated profit and loss account and batance sheet wclude the financial statements of the
company and its subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 December 201 5. The resulls of subsidiaries
sold or acquired &ré included in the profit and loss account up to, or from the date control passes. Intra-
group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consohdation.

European Property Invesfors (Special Limited Pariner) LP. and European Properly Investars {General
Pariner) L.P. have been consohidated In to the group accounts, They are consolidated due fo fthe
company's abilty to contral them through the terms of each enlily's Partnership Agreerent. The
company has no nghis to the assets or hiabllites of each undertaking and therelofe they are shown as
wholly aftributable to minonty interests in the group balance sheet.

1.3 Going concern
The company balance sheet shows both net current assets and net assets

On consohdation, as set out In the basis of consofidation accounting policy, the group inccrpos:ate's the
assets and liabilities of subsidiary undsrtakings on a life by line basis. However, none of the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiares are attibutable o the shareholders of the company. The group's net
liabiilies of €17.6m anse as a result of the provisien for claw back of carned interest as set out in the
partnership agreement of European Propery Investors {Special Limited Parner) L. This claw” back
does not crystallise unfil termmation of the underlying fund at which point the Special Limited Partner wilt
have an obligation to pay these amounts to the Fund. The Fund has received assurances from the fund
manager that these amounts can be recovered from the anvestors, In addition, tae of the significant
investors of the Fund have confirmed their current infeption fo suppart the Fund up to a certain amaunt
which is considered suificient to support it for the next 12 months

The directors have therefore prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis

Page 12




EP| General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1

14

1.5

16

Accounting policies (Continued)

Turncver

Turnover represents amounts recevable as carmed interest payabls {o the group in accordance with the
European Property Invesiors LP (‘the Fund®} Limted Parinership Agreement The carned interest
payable I1s calculated &t Fund level based on the return generated by each realised investment However
on disposal of the final nvestment the overall leve) of the performance fee will be calculaled based on
the tolal sums generated This may result In a claw back te the Fund of carmed Interest already
calcutated or an additional payment At thé end of each financial year, the General Partner is required to
make an estmate of the level of the camed inlerest at that dale based on returns generated and
expected future returns Turnover Is recognised to the extent that ¢ is probable that the economic
banefits will flow to the group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

income also includes distnbutions received from investments, rental income and gains or losses on
propesty sales

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash i hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term hiquid
investmenls with onginal maturties of three months or less, and bank overdrafis Bank overdrafis are-
shown within borrowings in current Habilitles,

Financial instruments
The group has elected to apply {he provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial instruents’ and Section 12
'Other Financial Instruments [ssues' of F RS 102 fo all of its financial instrumends,

Financlal instruments are recognised in the group's statemen! of financial position when the groyup
becomes parly to the contractual provisions of the instrumsnt,

Financial assets and labilitles are offset and the net amounts presented in the financlal statements when
there is a legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts and there is an litention to seltle on
a net basis orto'realise the asset'and setile the abilify simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial asseis, which include trade and other recewvables and cash and bank balances, are
inftizlly measured at transaction price Including transaction cosis and are subsequently carned at
amoriised cost using the effeclive interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transacilon, where fhe transaction is measurad at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a
market rate of interast.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including invesiments tn equity instruments which are nol subsidiaries, assoclates
or joint venitures, are intially measured at fair value, which 1s normally the transaction pnce. Such assets
are suhsequently“ carned at fair value and the changes i fair value are recognised In profit or loss,
except that investments in equity instruments that are niot publically traded and whose fair values cannct
be measured reliably are measured at cost less impafrment.

Trade debtors, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active markét are classifled as Yoans-and recewvables'. Loans and receivables are measured at
amorhised cost using the effective interest method, less any impalrment.

Interest Is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
racognition of interest would be immatenal The effective interest method 1s a methed of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating the interest income over the relevant penod. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recespts through the
expected life of the debt instrument to the net carrying amount on Initial recognihion
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EPI General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financiat Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1  Accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of fimancial assets
Financial assets, other than those held a! fair valtle through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators’
of impairment at each reperting end date

Financiat assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that accurred after the inftial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected, The impairment loss 1s recognised in profit or loss,

Derecognition of financial assets

Financlal assets are derecognised only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset
explie, or when If transfers the financial asset and substantially alf the nisks and rewards of ownership to
another entity,

Classification of financial Habliities

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered inta, An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual witerest in tha
assels of the group after deducting all of its kabilities,

Basic financaf liabilities

Basic financial habllifies, including trade and olher payables, bank loans, loans from fellow group
compantes and preference shares that are classiied as debt, are mitially recognised at transaction; price
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where tne debt instrument is measured at
the present value of the future receipts discounted at:a market rate of interest.

Debt [nstruments are.subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective Interest rate method.

Trade paysbles are obligations lo pay for goods or services that have been acquired In the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabllibes if payment is due
within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-cugrent habilties. Trade payables are
recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
"interest method.

Other financial habilities
Derivatives, including interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial
instruments. Denvatives are inltially recognised at fair value on the date e derivative contract 1s entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at thelr fair value. Changes in tha fair velue of derivatives are
recogmsed In profit or loss in finance costs or finance income as appropriate, uniess they are included in
a hedging arrangement.

Financial tiabiliies and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument is any contract.that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its kiabihties.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial habilties are derecognised when, and only when, tne obligation specified In the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expires.
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EPI General Parther Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

1

Accounting policies {Continued)

1.7 Equity instruments

18

1.9

Equily mstruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
Dindends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabifities once they are no longer at the
discretion of the group

Taxation .
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defermed tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net proft as
reported in the profit and foss account because it excludes stems of income or expense that are taxahle
or deductible In other years and it further excludes ttems that are never taxable or deductible The
group’s hiability for current fax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differerices and defetred lax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that they will be fecovered agairist the reversal of deférred tax
hiabilites or other fuure taxahle profits, Such assets and labilites are not recognised if the timing
difference anses from ghodwill or from the inttial recognition of bther assets and babifities in a transaction
that affects neither the tak profit nor the accounting profit,

Tha canying amount of deferred lax assels 1s reviewed at each reporting end date_and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no jonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avellable to allow all or part of the
assef to be recovered. Deferred fax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected (o @pply in the period
when the liatidity is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax 15 chatged or credited in-the profit and
fass accourit, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there 15
a legally enforceable nght to offset cumrent tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
habilifies relate to taxes levied by the same tax authordy.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it 15
probable that the gioup will be required fo settfo that obligation Provisions are measured at the
diractors’ best estimate of the expénditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and afe
discounted to present value wherg the. éffect is material.
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EPI General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2  Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertalnty

In the -application of the group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the camying amount of assets and liabilties that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimales and associated assumptions are based on histoncal
expenence and other factors that are cansidered to be relevant Actual resulls may differ from these
eshmates

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised n the perod in which the estimate 15 revised where the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future pericds where the revision affects:both cutrent and
future penods

Critlcal judgements
The following judgements (apart from those Involving estimates) have had the most signficant efiect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements,

Value of investments

The Partnership periodically revalues s invesiments based on s share of the underlying value of the
net assets of the mvestments of the fund. The sharé of net assets isdetermined by reference to a
valuation of the funds assets prepared by independent external fund managers:

Performance fee true up (clawback of carried forward interes?)

In accordance with the European Property Investors LP's {‘the fund’) limted partrership agreement, the
camed interest s calculated by the Fund based on lhe retum generaled by each reahsed mvestment. At
the end of sach financial year, the General Partner Is requited to make an estmate of the level of the
camed interest at that date based on reiurns generated and expected future retums.

3 Turnover and other revenue

An analysis of the group's tumover is as follows

2016 2014

€000 €000
Carned wnierest (8,692) {17,131)
Share of revenue from sale of investment properties by the fund 12 -
Rental income recerved from invesiments 521 40
Management fees 1 1

{8,158) {17,080}
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EP| General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financtal Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

4  Auditors' remuneration
Fees payable o the company's auditor and its associates
For audif services

Audit of the findncial statements of the group and company
Audit of the company's subsidianes

5 Employees
The only employees of thé company or group were the directors

6  Other gains and losses

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial instruments
Change m fair value of investments

7 Taxation

Current tax
UK carporation tax on profits for the current period

The charge for the year can be reconailed to the loss per the profit and loss account as follows

Losssbefore taxation

Expected tax charge based on a corporafion tax rale of 20%

Fair yalue adjustment not subject {o tax

Income not subject to corporation tax

Losses carried forward

Reduction In earlier years tax charge as a result of losses carned back

Tax expense for the year

2018
€000

[

28

|

2015

{2,036}

2015
€000

[

2015
€000

(10.223)

(2.044)
407
1,636
1

2014
€000

2014
€000

(2,118}

2014
€000

(1)

2014
€000

(19,226)

(3.845)

()
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EP| General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

8  Fixed asset investments

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
€000 €000 €000 €000
Unlisted investments 2,816 8,606 - -
Movements in fixed asseat investments
Group investment in
Fund
€000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2015 6,606
Distnbutions receved {1,754)
Changes in fair value (2,038)
At 31 December 2015 2,816
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 2,818
At 31 Decamber 2014 8,806
Company
For detalls of the company's invesiments see nole 9
9  Subsdiaries
Detalls of the company's subsidiaries at 31 Decamber 2015 are as follows.
Name of undertaking and country of incorporation or residency Nature of % Held
business
Direct

European Property Investors (General Partner) LP.  England and Investment

Wales -

European Property Investors (Special Limited Partner) England and Investment
L.P. Wales -

The above entties are controlied by virtug of the powers granted to EPI Gerieral Partner Limited
under the respechive partnership agreements of each entity.
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EPI General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

10 Flnancial insfruments

1

12

Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instruments measured at amorhised
cost

Equity instruments meastired at cost less
impairment

Carrying amount of financial Habllitles
Measured at amonised cost

Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year,

Other debtors )
Amounts due from fellow group undertakings

Credifors: amounts falling due within one year

Corporation tax payable
Other credtors
Accruals and deferred ncome

Group
2015
€000

4,237

2,816

7.053

4,254

Group
2015
€000

1
4,217
37

4255

Company-

2014 2015
€000 €000
4,187 12
6,806 -
10,793 12
4,178 11
Company

2014 2015
€000 €000
4,171 -
- 12
4,171 12
Company

2014 2015
€000 €000

1

4,160 -
18 11
4179 12

2014
€000

1

1

|

L.

2014
€000

ik

11

2014
€000

Imlm.-s

The company has outstanding charges over its assets in favour of the group's bankers and a fellow

group undertaking. Atthe balance sheet date the potential kability under these charges was €nil,
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EP| General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

13

14

16

16

Provislons for liabilities

Group Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
€000 €000 €000 €000
Provision for true up 20,389 11,697 - -

——— | ———— ——re— | —

The provision shown is in respect of a poleniial true up payable to the Fund. The expegted timing of the
settlement will be at the end of the [ife of the Fund and ts dependent on the future transactions of the
Fund.

Share capital
Group and company
2015 2014
€000 €000
Issued and fully paid
100 ordinary shares of £1 each - -
Refated party transactions

During the year, the group made a further provision of €8 692m (2014 €17 131m) in respect of the’
clawback of camed interest in European Property Investurs LP. European Property Investors LP is an
entity in which the group has a material interest. The best estmate of the amounts payable by the group
to European Property Investors LP are included in provisions for other- habilities and charges. At the
balance sheet date, the group owed European Property Investors LP €4.16 millign (2014: €4.16 million)
During the year the company provided services of €1,000 (2014: €1,000) to European Properly Inveslors
LP. At the balance sheet date, other debtors Includes €12,000 (204" €11,000) due from European
Properly investors LP.

At year end, the group was owed €4.16 million (201 4° €4 18m milllon) by Europeah Property Investors
LLC, an enfity that has a matenal wnlerest in one of EPl General Partner Limited's subsidiary
undertakings.

Controliing party
The immediate parent company is AEW Europe SA, an enfiy registered in France. The Ultimate

corttrolting party is Natixis Global Asset Management, S.A., an entity registered In France, by virtue of its
ultimate benefictal ownership of the company.
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EPI| General Partner Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Confinuead)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

17 Cash generated from operations 2016 2014
€000 €000
Loss far the year (10,223} {19,225)
Adjustments for:
income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - (1)
Fair value gains and losses on investments 2,036 2.118
Increase in provisions 8,692 17,131

Movemenis in working capital

(Increase) in debtors (N (1
Increasa in creditors 76- 18
Cash generated from operations 580 40
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP

{Limited Partnership No LP12726)

GENERAL INFORMATION
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No. LP12726)

GENEBRAL PARTNER'S REPORT

The General Partner presents its report and audited Consolidated Financal Statements of the Parmership for the year ended 31
December 2015

Pnnocipal Activity of the Partnership

European Property Investors Speaial Oppormniucs Limited Parmerstup closed on 23 May 2008 having mised €788 0 mullion of
equty The Partnership's strategy 15 to pursue "value-added” oppertunsies i non-listed real estate No project was acquired in the
year In addinon two projects and five asscts from cononuing projects were sold 1 the year  Projcts may be defined as a
Partersship of asset acqusitions wath sirular charactensncs in a particular junsdiction

‘The investment penod ended 1o May 2012 The focus for the European Property Investors Speoal Opportumities Lamated
Partnership and ws subsidanes ("the Partmershep) 15 to implement the business plan objeenves for each mvestment and to reabse
value where approprnate  The Partnership expects to wali up co €300 midlion (none was called 1n 2015) of remaining capatal dunng
2016

The Partnership owns properties in the office and retail sectoss across the UK, France, Spain and Poland

ATFMD

The Alternative Investment Fund Management Directive (AIFMD) came into force on 22 July 2014 The Parmershup was registered
as an AIF on 1 July 2014 In line with AIFMD, Trstan Capital Partners LLP acts as the Partnershsp's AIFM 2nd the Direcuve
requires an AIF to disclose certan informanon regarding AIFM remuneration The remuneration of the AIPM's staff ts governed by
the AIFM's dedicated remuneraon polcy Remuneration 1s composed of both fixed and vamable components Detads on
remunerition pad by the AIFM to 1ts staff arc avadable npon requese of the Investors at the registered office of the AIFM

Results for the year
The Partnershup has 2 consobidated comprehensive mcome for the year to 31 December 2015 of €84 7 million (2014 €158 2
million) The profit for the year includes

Gross property revenue of €55 8 midlion (2014 €87 6 mdlon),

Gnin on disposal of mvestment property of €7 0 midlion (2014 Gamn €4 4 million),
Gamn on disposal of substdiantes of €7 2 milbon (2014 Gatn €46 9 mdlion),

Change 1n fasr value of investment properties of €59 7 milion (2014 €81 6 mullion),
Finance costs of €46 6 mithen {2014 €46 6 milkion)

The gross asset value of the Partaership as at 31 December 201515 €873 8 rulhion (2014 €1,271 5 mallion)

Information to auditors

So far as each person who 1 a director of the Geneml Partner as the dare of approving this report 15 aware there 15 no relevant audit
information, being information needed by the quditor 1n connection wath prepaning s report, of which the auditor 1s unaware
[aving made enquuries of fellow directors of the General Partacr and the Partncrship's audiiors, cach director has taken all steps that
he 15 obliged to take as a duector of the Geneml Partner 1n order to make hmself aware of any relevant audst mformanen and to
cstablish that the auditor 1s aware of that mformaton

Going Concern

As at 31 December 2015, the Partnership has a net current lability position of €267 1 mullion (2014 net current habihity of €260 8
million) The General Partner has prepared the finanaal stterments on a going concem basis having a reasonable expectation that the
Partnership has adequate resources to continue tn operation for a penod of at lease 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial statements

For and on behalf of European Property Investors Special Opportumines (Generzl Partner) Limited

IV

Ric Lews Ian Lammng
Designated Member Designated Member

15 February 2016 15 February 2016




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnershup No. LP12726)

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

The General Partner 15 responsible for prepanng the Strategic Report, the General Partner’s Report and the financtal statements
m accordance with applicable law and regulatons

Company law requires the General Partaier to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the General
Partner has elected to prepare the finangal statements 10 accordance with Internauonal Financial Reporung Standards as adopted
by the European Union Under company law the directors of the General Partner must not approve the financal statements

unless they are sausfied that they grve a true and fair view of the state of affars of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the
Partnership for that period

In prepanng these Financial Statements, the General Partner 15 required to

® select sutable accounnng policies and then apply them consistendy,

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable Intemational Finanaial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unton have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

® prepare the financial statements on the going concern basss unless 1t s approprate to presume that the partnerstup will
connue in business

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and eaplan the
Parmership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial positon of the Partnesshup and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as appbed to quabfying partnerships by The
Partnershups (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and the Limited Partnership Agreement They ate also tesponsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Partnershup and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventon and detection of fraud and other irregulanues

For and on behalf of European Property Investors Special Opportuniues (General Partner) Lirmuted

‘\
Ll )
Ric Léns Tan Lamung
Designated Member Designated Member
15 February 2016 15 February 2016




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
{Limited Partnershup No LP12726)

GENERAL PARTNER'S STRATEGIC REPORT

The General Partner presents 1ts strategic report for the vear ended 31 December 2015

Rewview of the business

I he Partnership’s poncipal activities duning the year contnued to be the ownership of real estate investments across Lurope

TI'he key financial indicators durmg the year were as follows

2015 2014 Change

€000 €000 %

Gros property revenue 55814 87,581 {36%)
Profit after tax 72,897 148,629 (51%)
Distabutions pad 127,862 232,651 {45%)
Limuted Partnery’ net asscts 391,243 447,962 {13%)

I'he financial changes above are primanly due to the sale of Projects Greenway and Borhn Rowdential  This resulted 1m less net
property revenue offsct by an mereased profit on disposal Simiarly, the Limuted Partners’ net assets decreased primanly duc to
the distrrbutions pad following the sale of these two projects

I'he focus of the Partner-hip continues to revolve around implementing the bustess plan objectives for each nvestment and to
realise value where approprate

As at the 31+t December 2015 the Partnership had ~ix remaming nvestments which the Partnorship expects to continue to
dispose of as appropate

Ax at year end, €28 1 milhon of the €30 0 mdhion revolving credit facility with RBS Intcrnational has been drawn, leaving €1 9
mullion of the cash-backed facility available

Non-recourse debt financing has been drawn on all required mnvestments, resulting n a 54 8% LTV against book value and
average margin of 29% lhe Partnership extended loans on Projects Alizes, Centrum and Sapphire and commenced
discusstons to cxtend loans on Project Boxes 1 he Parmership extended the Tapas loan with J7* Morgan

Tax

An analyws of the tax charge ~ et out in note 12 to the Partmeship™ financial statements  The wx charge represents the
consolidated net tax charge of the undedying subsidsaries, together with deferred tax on the diffcrence between the farr value of
mvestment property and the tax baws as wdll as other temporary differences, as requied under International lnancral
Reporting Standards

Assets and Capual Structure

I'he Partnership's loan to value pescentage 1s as follows

2015 2014

€'000 €'000

Investment propertics 451,407 744 656
Investment properties m the course of construction - 150,949
Investment properties claswfied as held for ale 326,556 170,892
777,963 1,066,497

Securcd interest-bearing loan~ and borrownngs (398,218) (496,188)
Liquidity/credit line borrowings relatng to details (28,130) {17 422)
(426,348) (513.610)

Loan to value % 54 8% 48 2%

The polcy for determuning whether fixed or floanng rates of nterest are entered into 15 examined on a regular bass with
assistance of external advisors




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

GENERAL PARTNER'S STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Capttal calls during the year

The Parmership made no capital calls m 2015 (2014 one totalling €6 mihon)

Capital calls 2015 2014
€'000 €'000
Boxes - 4,100
Sapphire - 1,900
- 6,000
Capital teturned dunng the year
The Parmership returned €62 5 million (2014 €150.0 mullion) of capital to the partners
Ptofile of debt
The profile of the Partnership’s debt finance 15 as follows
2015 2014
€'000 €000
Current loans (309,138) (236,638)
Non-current loans (117,210) (276,971)
(426,348) (513,610)

Pancipal Risks and Uncertainties

The Partnership 15 subject to 2 range of nsks, most notable of which are those associated with the ownership of
property, including changes in market conditions leading to an oversupply of space or a reduction 1n tenant demand
for a parncular type of property 1 a given market, changes 1n interest rates and the avatlabihey of real estate lending,
the nsk that one or more tenants may be unable to meet thewur obligations to the Parmership or the Partnershup may
not be able to lease propetties on favourable terms and the potental dliqudity of property wvestments, particularly
mn tmes of economic downturn, and changes in exchange rates where assets are held m curtencies other than the

Euro

The Partnershup seeks to miatipate these risks through a range of activities, including thorough acqusihon due
diligence, achve on-goung asset management, and adopting interest rate and foreign eschange rate hedging strategies

whete appropnate

<«

AN )

Ric Léwis Ian Laming

Desipnated Member Designated Member

15 February 2016 15 February 2016




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS
SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP

We have audited the financal statements of European Property lnvestors Specnl Gpportunties LP for the year ended 31
December 2015 which compnse the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incame, the Consolidated and Parnership
Statement of Finanenl Postton, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Asscts Astnbutable to Limuted Partners, the
Partnershup Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Limited Partners, the Consoldated Statement of Cash Flows and
the related notes 1 to 30 The finanaal reporung framework that has been applied v thewr preparauon 1s applicable Jaw and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unson

This report 1s made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, 10 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compantes Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounny) Regulations 2008 Qur audit work has
been undertaken so that we mught state to the qualifying partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them tn an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent pernutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibdity to
anyonc other than the qualifying partnership, as a bedy, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinrons we have formed

Respective responsibilives of members and audrear

As explaned more fully in the General Partner’s Responsibilines Statement set out on page 3, the General Partner s responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being sabshied that they give a true and fair view Our responstbility 15 to audie
and express an opinion on the financwl statements mn accordance with applicable law and Internanonal Standards on Audiung (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethacal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtainmg evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the finanand statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error "Lhis includes an
as~essment of whether the accounting policses are appropnate to the qualifiing partnershap’s circumstances and have been
consistcntly applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of signficant accounting estimates made by the members, and the
overall presentation of the financial smtements In addinion, we read all the financial and non-financil informaton mn the annual
report to weaofy material inconsisteneies with the audited financial sttements and to idenafy any mformation that 18 apparently
matenally incormreet based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit 1f
we become aware of any apparent materal nusstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphcatnoens for our report

Opimon on financial statements

In our opinton the financral starements

* give a teue and fair view of the state of the quahifying partnership’s affaurs as at 31 December 2015 and of uts profit for the yeat
then ended,

* have been propetly prepared in accordance wath 1FRSs as adopted by the European Umon, and

* have been prepared in 2ccordance with the cequirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicd to qualifying pattnerships by The
Partnerships {(Aceounts) Regulations 2008

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2000 as applied to qualifying partnerships
fequires us to report to you if, 1o our opinion

* adequate accounting reccords have not been kept, or ceturns adequate for cur audit have not been received from branches not
viaited by us, o1

* the financral statements are not 11 agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certain disclosures of members’ remuncraton speafied by law are not made, or

* we have not recerved all the informanon and explanations we requure for our audst

G(f\3£ a \‘lO\mﬂ Lep

Dansel Szunders (Sentor statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Stwutory Auditor
London

15 February 2016




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
{Limited Partnership No LP12726)

CONSOLIDATED AND PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
Consolidated Parmership
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes €'000 €'000 €000 €'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment propertes 14 451,407 744,656 - -
Investment properties mn the course of construction 14 - 150,949 - -
Investment in substdianes 15 - - 1,600 1,600
Loan to subsidanes 22 - - 467,872 470,863
Denvative financial nstruments 18 - 1 - -
Total non-current assets 451,407 895,606 469,472 472,463
Current assets
Loan to subsidianes 22 - - 82,463 125,461
Trade and other recervables 17 74,205 77,460 29,758 24,594
Current tax recenable 1,285 09,270 - -
Denvative financial mstruments 18 670 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 19,658 118,268 6,433 43,531
‘Total current assets 95,318 204,998 118,654 193,586
Investment Properties classified as held for sale 14 326,556 170,862 -
Total Asscts 873,781 1,271,466 588,126 666,049
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Partners’ capiml contnbunons 345,073 407,618 345,073 407,618
Panners' current aceount 13,301 19,261 15,440 47,068
Lxchange reserves 32,869 21,083 30,730 20,026
391,243 7962 391,243 4747112
Non conirolling interests {56,332) 15,715 - -
‘Total Equity 384,911 463,677 391,243 474,712
Non-current habilities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 21 117,210 276,91 - -
Loans from subsidtaries 22 - - 151,592 143,208
Trade and other payables 20 217 24,484 - -
Denvauve financual mstrurnents 18 - 13,134 - -
Deferred tax habihties 13 8,531 27449 - -
Toral non-current babihnes 125,958 342,038 151,592 143,208
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 21 309,138 236,638 28,130 17,422
Trade and other payables 20 33,014 212,207 1,91 14,604
Denvanve finanaal instouments 18 16,553 11,381 15,260 16,103
Current tax payable 4,207 5,524 - -
‘Total current labihiues 362,912 465,751 45,291 48,129
‘Total Lrabihries 438,870 807,789 196,883 191,337
Total Equaty and Liabilities 873,781 1,271,466 588,125 666,044

Signed on behalf of Evropean Property Investors Speaal Opportunines LP by its General Partner, Curopean Property Investoss
Special Opporunines (General Partnes) LP zenng through 1ts peneral parmer European Property Investors Speaisl Opportunitics
(General Partmer) Lumited

AW —=

Ruc Lewts
Designated Member Designated Member
15 Cebruary 2016 15 Februzary 2016

The accompanymng Notes to the Consolidared Financal Statements form an tntegral part of these Consolidated Financtal Statements




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP

{Limited Partnership No LP12726)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Gross rental income

Service charge mcome
Other property mncome
Orther income

Property operating expenses
Net property revenue

Admumustrative expenses

Surplus on trading propertes

Gain on sale of nvestment properties

Gain on sale of subsidaries

Change 1n fair value of mmvestment propertics
Operaung profit

Finance ncome
Finance costs
Profit before tax
Taxaton

Total profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translanon of foreign operattons

Total comprehensive mncome for the year

Notes

10
14

11
11

12

There 15 no taxanon effect relaung to items of other comprehensive income  All items of other comprehensive
mncome recognised for the year may be reclassified to Profit or Loss in subsequent years

Profit attnnbutable to
Limuted Partners
Non-controlling mterests

Total comprehensive income attnbutable to

Lirmited Partners
Non-controlling interests

2015 2014
€000 €000
55,814 87,581
13,849 22114
5,787 18,659
6,945 -
(29,863) (36,440)
52,532 91,914
(12,097) {19,626)
- 237

7,047 4438
7,233 46,943
59,666 81,593
114,381 205,499
7,458 8,929
(46,631) (46,637)
75,208 167,791
@2311) (19,162)
72,897 148,629
11,786 9617
84,683 158,246
58,572 127,810
14,325 20,819
72,897 148,629
70,358 137,427
14,325 20,819

84,683

158246

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financmal Statements form an integral part of these Consolidated

Financial Statements




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP

(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO LIMITED
PARTNERS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

As at 1 January 2015
Distributions to Limited Partners
Rebates on management & commitment fees

lotal comprehensive income for the year

As at 31 December 2015

As at1 January 2014

Net contnbutions from Lamited Partners
Distrbutions to Limited Partners

Rebates on management & commitment foos
"l otal comprehensive tncome for the year

As at 31 December 2014

Attributable to Limited Partners

Foreign Non-

Capital Exchange  Current controlling
Account Reserve  Account TOTAL Interests TOTAL
€000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
407,618 21,083 19,261 447,962 15,715 463,677
(62,545) - {65,317y  (127,862) (36,372) (164,234)
- - 785 785 - 785
- 11,786 58,572 70,358 14,325 84,683
345,073 32,869 13,301 391,243 {6.332) 384,911

Attributable to Limited Partners

Foreign Non-

Capital Exchange  Current controlhing
Account Reserve  Account TOTAL Interests TOTAL
€000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
551,650 11,466 (26,939 536,177 9,882 546,059
6,000 - - 6,000 - 6,000
(150,032) - (82,619) (232,651 (14,986) (247,637)
- - 1,009 1,009 - 1,009
- 9,617 127,810 137,427 20,819 158,246
407,618 21,083 19,261 447,962 15,715 463,677

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Finanenl Statements form an integral part of these Consolidated 'mancial

Staternents




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP

{Limited Partnership No LP12726)

PARTNERSHIP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO LIMITED
PARTNERS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

As at1]January 2015

Distmibutions to Limited Partners

Rebates on management & commutment fees
Total comprehensive income for the year

As at 31 December 2015

As at 1 January 2014

Net contnbutions from Limited Partners
Distnbunions to Limated Partners

Rebates on management & commutment fees
Total comptehensive income for the year

As at 31 December 2014

Artnbutable to Limited Partners

Foreign

Capital  Exchange Current
Account Reserve  Account TOTAL
€'000 €'600 €'000 €'000
407,618 20,020 47,068 474,712
(62,545) - (65,317} {127,862)
- - 785 785
- 10,704 32,904 43,608
345073 30,730 15,440 391,243

Attnibutable to Limited Partners

Foreign

Capital Exchange  Current
Accoumnt Reserve  Account TOTAL
€'000 €000 €000 €'000
551,650 6,789 23,138 581,577
6,000 - - 6,000
(150,032) - (82,619 (232,651)
- - 1,009 1,009
- 13,237 105,540 118,777
407,618 20,026 47,068 474,712

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements form an integral part of these Consohdated

Financial Statements

10



EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP

(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Operaung acuvities

Profit before tax

Gain on ~ale of investment properties

Gain on sale of subsidanes

Changes i fair value of mvestment propertics
Changes in farr value of financial instruments
Increase 1 recevables

Decrease n payables

Nct finance costs

lax pad

Net cash flow (used m)/from operating activities

Investing activities

Subscquent expenditure on investment proportics
Proceeds from sale of mvestment properties
Procceds from salc of subsidanes
Disposal of investment properues
Decrease i recervablos
Deerease m payables
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash flow from investinent activiies
Financing acuvities

Distabunon pad to Lamited Partners
Distnbubion to non-controlling mterests
Procceds from borrowangs

Repayment of borrowmgs

Interest receved

Interest pad

Net cash flow used in financing activines

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents at the begimnmg of the year
I'xchange differences

Cash and cash equivaleats at the end of the year

2015 2014
Notes €000 €000
75,208 167,791
9 (7.047) (4,438)
10 (7,233) (46,943)
(59,666) (81,593)
1,051 1,722
(8,391) (1,324)
(66,250) (46,877)
38,123 35,880
(14,562) (13,814)
(48,767) 10,404
(17,683) (48,220}
31,588 174,998
214,035
11,445
(5.689)
(72,735)
147,056 301,260
160,961 428,038
(127,862) (225,644)
(36,372) (16,485)
24,183 21,902
(35,504) (96,626)
120 123
(36,088) (36.003)
(211,523) (352,733)
(99,329) 85,709
118,268 31,811
719 748

19

19,658 118,268

I'he accompanying Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements form an integral part of these Consolidated |inancial

Statements
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPCRTUNITIES LP
{Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

b)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of European Property Investors Spectal Opportunities Larmuted
Partnership for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authonised for 1ssue in accordance with 2 resolution
of the General Partner on 15 February 2016  European Praperty Investors Specal Opportunities Limited
Partnershup (the 'Partnership’) 1 a qualifying limited partnership incorporared in England and domucled m
the Unuted Kingdom

The Partnership 15 expected to continue untl 22 May 2017 The Partnershup has sufficient hquidity to meet
1ts net current abiliues as they fall due

The General Partmer to the Partnerstup 1 European Property Investors Spectal Opporuniues (General
Partner), LP (acung through s general partner European Property Investors Special Opponumues (General
Partner) Limired as ncorporated and regastered n England and Wales whose registered office 15 located at
Berkeley Square House, 8th Floor, Berkeley Square, London, W1] 6DB

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Preparanon of the consohdated financial statements

As ar 31 December 2015, the Partnership has a net current labihity of €267 1 mullton (2014 €260 8 rullion)
The General Partner has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis having a reasonable
expectauon that the Partnership has adequate resources to continue 11 operation for a penod of at least 12
months from the date of approval of the financial statements  All investment loans are non-recourse and the
Partnership expects to pay all its habihties as they fall due The Consobdated Financial Statements are
prepared applying the histomcal cost bass, except for mvestment property and denvanve financial
instruments that have been measured at far value The Consobdated Financial Statements are presented in
Euros (€} and all values are rounded to the nearcst thousand (€000) except when otherwise indicated The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Internanonal Finanaial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) av 1vsued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and adopted by the EU

No profit and loss account  presented for European Property Investors Special Opportunitics LP as
permutted under sechon 408 of the Compantes Act 2006 The Partnershup's profit for 2015 was €43 6m
(2014 €118 8m)

All references to "net assets” throughout these Consolidated Financial Statements refer to the net assers
attributable to the holders of Limited Partners' interests unless otherwise stated

Cash flow statement

The Partnership reports cash flows from operating actvities using the indirect methed Interest recerved and
pad are presented within financing cash flows The expenditure on investment properties i disclosed as cash
flows from investing acavities because thus most appropnately reflects the Partnership's busimess acuvines

New and amended standards adopted by the Parmership
The following standards are relevant to the Partnershup and are mandatory for the Partnership’s accounting
periods beginnung on or after 1 January 2015

12



EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
J1 DECEMBER 2015 (continued)

2

<)

d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Partmershup (continued)

Effective for annual periods (and interim periods therein) ending 31 December 2015 and thereafter

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

In the 2011-2013 annual improvements cycle, the IASB 1vsued three amendments o three standards, which included an
amendment to IFRS 13 Farr Value Measutement The amendment w IFRS 13 1 effecuve m the EU for penods
begmnming at 1 January 2015, and 1t clanfies i the Basis for Conclustons that short-term recervables and payables with no
stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting 13 immaterial This amendment
to IFRS 13 has no mmpact on the Group

Thas cycle also included an amendment to TAS 40 Investment Properties The descniption of ancillary services in TAS 40
differentiates between mvestument property and owner-occupted property (L e, property, plant and equpment) The

amendment clanfies that IFRS 3, not the descripnon of ancillary services mn IAS 40, 14 used to determine whether the
transaction 1s the purchase of an asset or business combination This amendment to IAS 40 has no unpact on the Group

New standards, amendments and mterpretations 1ssued, but not yet effective

The following new and amended standards and mnterpretations have been 1vsued and are mandatory for the Partnership's
accounting pertods beginning after 1 January 2016 and are expected to be relevant to the Partnership

Effective for annual penods (and intenim penods theren)} ending 31 December 2015 and thereafter

IFRS 11 (amended) Jomnt Arrangements Accountng for Acquisiions 1 January 2016
of Inferests
IAS 1 (amended) Disclosure Imtanve 1 January 2016
IAS 27 (amended) Equity Method 1n Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 9 Financtal Instruments (tvsued in 2014) 1 January 2018
IFRSs Annual Improvements 1o IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 February 2015
IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

The Partnership will consider the impact of these new standards and amendments in the next financial year
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (contunued)

3

b)

<)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Partnership’s Consolidated Iinancial Statements requires the General Partner to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilines and the disclosure of contingent
liabities, at the reporting date 1owever, uncertamty about these assumpuions and esumates could eesult 1n outcomes that requirce a
matenal adjustment to the carnyng amount of the assets or habiities affecred

In the process of applying the Partnership's accounting policies, the General Partner has made the followang judgements, which
have the most sygnificant effect on the amounts recognised 1n the Consolidated Financial Statements

Valuations of propertics

Investment properties are stated at farr value as at the Consolidated Statement of Fnancial Poston date Gains or losses ansing
from changes n the far valucs are included m the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income m the period on which they
anse

I'he determinatnon of the far value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from assets
(such as lettngs, tenants' profiles, furre revenuc streams, capital values of fixtures and fitings, plant and machmeny, any
environmental matters and the overall repair and conditon of the property) and discount rates apphicable 1o those assets o
addmon, development nsks {such as construcnon and leting nsks) are also taken into consderation when derermining the faur
value of mnvestment properues under construcnon  These estimates are based on local marker condmons exisnng at the
Consohdated Statement of nanaal Postion date

Investment properties are transferred to held for sale once they meet the approprate critena, as outhned under TFRS 5 'Non-
Current Assets [ leld for Sale and Disconunued Operations’

Taxes
The Partnershup s subject to income and capital guns taxcs i numerous jurisdicnons  Significant judgement 1 required to
determine the total provision for current and deferred taxes

There are many transacuons and calculatons for which the ulumare tax deterrunanon and tming of payment i uncertain In
particular, when calculanng deferred taxanon, the efficove tax rate appheablc on the temporary differenees 1 mvestment
propertics depends on the method by which the carrying amount of mvestment properties will be realised

Ihe Partnership recognises habilitics for current taxes based on eshimates of whether addinonal waxes will be due Where the final
tax outcome of these matters v different from the amounts that were imtally recorded, such diffcrences will impact the income
and defcrred tax provistons i the peniod n which the determmanon 1« made Deferred mcome tax assets and habilities are offset
when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets aganst current tax habthnes and when the deforred meome taxes
assets and habiities relatc to meome taxes levied by the same raxation authonty on cther the samc taxable cnuty or different
taxablc cntires where there 15 an intention te scitle the balances on a net basis

Uncertamnties exist wath respect to the micrpretanon of complex tax regulations and the amount and nming of future taxable
mcome and gans Grven the wide range of mternatonal business relanonships and the long-term nature and comploaty of existing
contractual agreements, diffurences 2nsing between the actual results and the assumpoions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income consequences of audits by the tax authonnes of the respective
countrics 1n which 1t operates The amount of such prowvisions 1» based on vanous factors, such as differimg mterpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authonty Such differences of interpretanon may ansc on a wide vanety of
ssues depending on the condinons prevatling in the respective company's domicle

Performance fee

A performance fee 1 payable to the Special 1umuted Partner in accordance with the cotena as descnbed 1n Secoon 611 of the
Fund's Limuted Partnership Agreement  [he fee payable 15 caleulated based on the retumn generated by cach realised mvestment,
however on disposal of the final investment the overall level of the performance fee wall be calculated based on the total rerurns
generated  This may result i a claw back of the performance fees already calculated or an addinonal pavment At the end of each
financial year the Managers are required to make an esttmate of the level of the labiiry at that date, based on the retums generated
to date and expected future returns

Liabilines ansing from the performance fec, that are determined by amounts realised on disposal of mvestments are financal
lLabilizes measured through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  The level of the liability 15 measured at the end
of cach year end based on the Managers' esttmate of the future cash flows payable
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (continued)

a)

b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consohdation

T'he consolidated financial statements compnse the financal statements of the Partner~hip and its subwidianes a~ ar 31
December 2015 Control s achieved when the Partnership s exposed, or has nghts, 1o vanable returns from s involvement
with the mvestee and has the abilicy to affect those returns through 1tn power over the wvesiee Specifically, the Partnership
controls an mvestee if, and only sf, the Partnership has

» Power aver the investee (1 e, exasting tights that give 1t the current ability to direet the relevant activities of the investee)

« BFxposure, or nghts, to vamble rcturns from s mvolvement wath the mveste

* [he ability to use 1t~ power over the mvestee to affect its returns
Generally, there 1~ 2 presumption that 2 majonty of voting nghts result in control Lo support this presumption and when the
Partership has less than a majonity of the votng or similar nghts of an investee, the Martnership considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

¢ [he contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the mvestee

+ Rughts arang from other contractual arrangements

+ Lhe Partnership’s votng nghts and potontial voting righes
Lhe Parmership re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee 1of facts and aircumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control Consolidation of a subsudiary begins when the Partnership obtams control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Partnership loses control of the subsdamry  Asscts, habiities, income and expenses of a
substdiary acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included m the consolidated finanaal statuments from the date the
Partnership gains control untl the date the Partnership ceases to control the subsidiary

Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income (QCI) are attnbuted to the equaty holders of the parcat of
the Partnership and to the non-controlhng mterests, even if this results n the non-controlling interests having a deficit balancc

When necessary, adjustments are madc to the financaal statements of subsidianes to bang their accountng pohetes into hine with
the Partnership’s accounting pohcies Al intra-Partnership asscts and habiities, equity, mcome, expenses and cash flows relanng
to transactions berween members of the Partnesship are diminated in full on consohdaton

A change 1n the ownurship intcrest of a subsidiany, wathout a loss of control, s accounted for as an equity transacaon

If the Partnership loses control over 2 subsidiary, it derccognises the rddated assets (including goodwill), habiites, non-
controllmg mrcrest and other components of cquity while any resultant gam or loss s recogiuised m profit or loss Any
mvestment retamned 1v recognised at farr value

Foreign currency translauon

Ihe con~chdated financial statements are presented i Luros, which 15 the presentanonal currency  liach entity 1n the
Partaership determines its own funcnonal currency and ttems included 1n the financil statements of each cntity are measured
using that functional currency

In the mdividual financial statements, transactions tn foregn currencies are mitially recorded m the functional curtency at the
rates of exchangce ruling at the date of the transacuon  Monetary assets and habilities denominated m forapn currencies are
subsequently retranslated at the funcnonal currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance <hect date  Non-monctary stem- that
arc denomunated 1n a foreign currency and measured 1n terms of histoneal cost are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fatr value was determined  All chfferences are taken to Statement of Comprehensive Income

In the consobdated financial statements, the assets and lubibites of foragn currency donomunated operanons are translated into
Ivuros at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and foreign currency denominated items in the Consohdated
Statement of Comprehensive Income arc translated at the weighted average rate for the year I'he foreign currency translaton
reserve records exchange differences ansing from the translanon of the financal statements of these foreign subachanes

Any fair value adjustment- to the carrying amounts of assets and habiines ansing on the acquisinon of a foraign operanon are
treated as assets and habilities of the foreign operation and translated at the clovng rate Where a foreign curreney denominated
loan 15 conwidered part of the net mvistment, exchange gains and losses anvng on retranslation of the loan are recognised
directly m cquity untl diporal of the mvestment, at which ume they arc recognised n the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehenstve Income as part of the profit or loss on disposal
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limiuted Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 {continued)

4

d)

g)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(conunued)

Borrowing costs

Borrownng costs are recogrused as an expensc using the effective nterest rate method with the exception of finance costs
on investment properties m the course of construction which are instead capitalised as part of the cost of constmcuon
The effective interest rates are as disclosed 10 note 21 Borrowing costs consist of mnterest and other costs that an entty
in¢urs 1n ¢connection with the borrowng of funds

Investment properties

Investment properties are recogmised m accordance with EAS 40 'Investment Propenty’ (revised), when 1t 15 probable that
the future economuc benefits associated wath the mvestment property wall flow to the ennty and the cost can be measured
rebably In general this happens on legal completion of contracts and assets are measured 1utally at cost, including
transacuon costs The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the nme
that cost 15 mcurred, providing the recogmion caterta are met, but excludes the costs of day to day servicing

Subsequent to mnal recogmition, investment propertes are stated at fair valee, which represents the amount ar which the
assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller 1n an arm’s length
transacuion at the date of valuanon, which reflects the market conditions at that date  Gamns or losses ansing from
changes 1n the farr values of investment properttes are included 1n the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
1n the year 1n which they anse

Where an exisung mvestment property 1s redeveloped for continued future use as an investment properts, the property
remains an mvestment property and 1s accounted for as such

Investment properties are derecogmised when enther they have been disposed of or when the investment propurty 1s
permanenty withdrawn from use and no furure economuc benefit 1s expected from s disposal Any gains or losses on
the reurement or disposal of an nvesunent property are recognised 1n the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive
Income 1 the year of retirement or disposal

Trading properties

Trading properues are those properues acquired with the intenton to dispose of them in the ordinary course of business,
rather than to be held for rental or caprtal appreciaton and are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
includes all costs 1 banging the properties to their current condinon  Net reahisable value s assessed by the Parmership
having regard to surtable external advice and knowledge of recent comparable transactions, as being fair value ar the
balance sheet date less estmated costs of sale

Investment properties in the course of construction

Investment properties in the course of construction which comprnise property under constructon, its associated land and
any dwectly atinbutable transacnon costs, are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date On completion of
construcuon or development the asset 1s transferred to nvestment properties

Investment properues held for sale

An nvestment property 15 classified as held for sale where 1t 1s available for sale in 1ts present condition and the sale 1s
deemed to be highly probable, as evidenced by certain conditions at the balance sheet date A sale 15 defined as highly
probable where management 15 commutted to a plan 1o achieve the sale, there 15 an active programme to find a buyer, the
property 15 beng acuvely marketed at a reasonable pnce, the sale 1s anticipated to be completed wathin one year from the
date of classification and 1t 1s unlikely there will be changes to the plan
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
{Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (conunucd)

4

h)

]

k)

)

m)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conunucd)

Trade and other receivables

Irade and other recewvables are recognised and carned ar the lower of therr ongnal 1voiced value and recoverable
amount Where the time value of moncey 1» matenal, receivables are camed at amornsed cost ’rovision 1+ made when
there is objective cvidence that the Partnership will not be able to recover balances in full Balances are wntten off when
the probabihity of rccovery 1s assessed as being remote

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 1n the Consolidated Statement of [naneial Position comprse ¢ash in hand and at bank and
short term deposits with an ongmal marunty of three months or 1o

Restricted cash 1s not mcluded wathun cash at bank and v disclosed wath trade and other reccivables mn the Consolidated
Statement of Fmancial Posttion and 1in note 17 Restricted cash s defined as cash that v not avadable to finance the
Partnership's day-to-day operanons

Trade and other payables

1rade and other payables are recognised and earned at fair value Where the nme value of money 1» matenal, payables are
subsequently carnicd at amortsed cast Generally this results i thar recognition ar their nomunal valuc

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings arc tially recognised at farr valuc less dircetly attnbutable transacnon costs After winial
recogminon, nterest beanng loans and borrowmngs are subscquently measured at amortived cost uang the effectnve
mterest method, bemg the rate that exactly discounts esnmated future cash flows through the expected bife of the
financial mstrument to the net carrying amount of the financial habidity at the end of the expected life

Leases

Finance leases, that transfer 1o the Parmership substannally all the nsks and benefits maidental te ownership of the leased
ttern, are capitalised at the incepuon of the lease at the farr value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of
the munimum lease paymenes

All other leases are treared as operating leases Operating lease payments are recogrised as an expense i the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensave Income on a straght-line basis over the lease term, except for contingent rental payments
which are expensed when they anse

Revenue rccognltlon

Rental itncome

Rental tncome ansing from operating leases on mvestment properties 18 accounted for on a straght-ine bass over the
lease term Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, and are accounted for on
a straght-line basts over the lease term, except that contngent lease rentals are recognised as revenue n the year in which
they are earned

Premiums recetved to termunate leases are recognised 1 the Consolidated Statement of Comprchensive Income when
they anise

Service chasge mcome recoverable from tenants

Expenses incurred n the day-to-day operanons of mvestment properaes, as well as expenses recoverable from tenants,
are recorded as operaung expenses  Amounts recovered from tenants are recogntsed wathin revenue as service charge
mncome whilst other operanng tncome records insurance receipts and other muscellancous income  The income 15
recognised m the year n which 115 eared.

Sale of invesunent property
Revenue from the sale of investment propertics and trading propertics 15 recognised 1n the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive lncome when the transaction has completed

Interest mcome
Interest 15 recognased ax the mterest accrues (using the effective interese rate method)
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Lrmited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (contunued)

4

n)

o)

p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conunued)

Taxes

I'he structure of the Partnership 1 tax transparent Accordingly, tax i~ not payable by the Partnership on the Partnership's
profit for the year, however the operaung meome of the Partnership’s investment through ats substdianes may be subject to
mcome taxes n the respective jurisdictions at appheable tax rates Such tax 1s recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehenyve Income except to the exrent that it relates to tems recognived ducectly m net assets, 1n which case 1t 1~
recogrused directly in the Consolidated Statement of Change~ n Net Assets Attnbutable to [ imited Partners

Current tax
Current tax asscts and liabilities are measured at the amount expoered to be recovered from or paid to mxatton authonoes
lhe tax rates and tax laws u~ed to compute the amount are those that are cnacted or substantively enacted by the
Con~ohdated Statement of lanancial Posnion date Management penodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns wath
respuct to situattons m which applicable tax regulanons are subjeet to mterpretanon and ostablishes provistons where
appropnate

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1~ provided m full, using the habidity method on all temporary differences at the Consolidated Statement of
Imancal Powiion date between the tax bases of asscts and labilines and thewr carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes with the following excepuons

*  Where the tumporary diffcrence anses from the minal recogninon of goodwall or of an asset or habiity 1n a transaction
that 1 not a business combinanon that at the tmc of the transacton affects nerther accounting nor taxable profit or
lons

* In respect of taxable temporary diffcrences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t 1~ probable that the temporary differences wall not reverse 1n the
foresecable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 1t 1~ probable that taxable profit will be available aguinst which
deductble temporary differences, carnied forward tax credits or tax losses can be unlised

Deferred tax assets and lhabiibes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset s
realned or the lability 1 settted, based on tax rates (and tax law~} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
Consobdated Statement of IMnancal Poviton date

Deferred tax relating to atems recognised directly m changes in nct assets attabutable to 1 mited Partners v recognised in
the Con~olidated Statement of Changes in Net Asscts Attnbutable to Limited Partners and not 1in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Denvanves and hedging

The Partnership uses mnterest rate swaps and caps to hedge 1t nisks ascociated with mterest rates, and forwards to hedge 1t
noks assocated with foreygm exchange Such denvanve finanaal mstruments are imtially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a dunivanve contract 1 entered tnto and are subsequently re-measured  at fair value which in the majonty of cases
1> derved by reference to directy and mdirecty obscrvable market data  Denvatves are carned as assets when the fair value
1~ positive and as habilities when the farr value 1~ neganse

TI'he Partnership doe- not adopt hedge accounting and thereforc any gains or losses ansng from changes m farr valuc on
denvatives dunng the year are taken directly to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Reserves

Fartners' capreal account

This reserve 1+ used to record the capital contabuted from the Limuted Partners for the purpose of investments, less capital
subscquently returned to the [ ymited Partners
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EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
{(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (conunucd)

4

P

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Reserves {continued)

Eschange reserves
Ihiy reserve 1s used to record oxchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subuidiartes

where the funcoonal currency 1~ not Luros

Partacrs’ cursent account
I'has roserve 1s used to record the profiss / (losss) carned to date from the mvestments, less any profit returned to the 1 imured

Partners via a distrtbution

Non-controlling mirerest
I'his reserve 1s used to record the non-controlling interests’ share of net assets, plus their share of profit or loss carned to date, less anv

distributions paid to them

Transactions with non-controlling interests

Non-controlhng tnterests represent the portion of profit or loss and net awsets not held by the Partnership I'he Partnership apphes a
policy of treanng transactnons with non-controlltng interests as transactons with partics external to the Partership In accordance
with 1AS 27, non-controlling mtcrests mn the profit, loss and nct assets of subsdianes for the reporung portod are presented weparately
in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehenaine Income and Consohdared Statement of Changes i Nut Assets Attabutable to
Limitcd Partners

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

I'he Partnership’s principal financral instruments, other than denvanves, comprise bank loans, trade and other recuvables, trade and
other payables and cash  T'he mamn purpose of these finanaal mstruments 5 to provide finance for the Partnesshup’s real estate
mvestment activities

I'he Partnership’s also enters into demvative transactions, mamly interest rate swaps and caps  Therr purpose 1s to achieve a balance
burween nsk management and an economic cost of finance for the Partnership It s Partnership pelicy that no trading i financal
mstrurnents shall be undertaken

The Parmership’s financial instruments and how they are measured in the Conselidated Statement of Financial Posion 15 summarised
below

As at 31 December 2015 Loans and Financial assets Financial Financial Total
receivables at fair value Ltabilities Labihties at fair
through profit measured at  value through
orloss  amortised cost profit or loss
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Finaneral assets
- lrade and other recevables 74,205 - - - 74,205
- Denvanve financal instruments - G670 - - 670
- Cash 19,658 - - - 19,658
Financial habihues
- Interest-beanng loans and borrowmgs - - (426,348) - (426,348)
- 1rade and other payables - - - (33,231) (33,231)
- Denvanve financial mstruments - - - (16,553) (16,553)
93,863 670 (426,348) (49,784) {381,599
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a)

b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2014 Loans and Financial assets Financial Financial Total

recewvables at fair value habilines habilities at fair

through profit or measured at  value through

loss amorused cost profit or loss
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Financal assets

- | rade and other receivables 77,460 - - - 77,460
- Denvative financial mstruments - 1 - - 1
-Cash 118,268 - - - 118,268

Financial hiabihities

- Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - - {513,610) - (513,610}
- lrade and other payables - - {236,691} - (236,691)
- Denvanve financial instruments -~ - - (24,515) (24,515)

195,728 1 (750,301) (24,515) (579,087)

Interest rate nsk

T'he Partnershap's exposurd to market risk for changes 1n ingerest rates relates pamanty to debt obliganons with floatng mterest rates

I'he Partnershap’s policy 1s to manage 1ty mterest cost using different hedging mstruments, mecluding swaps and caps, to hedge the
underlying debt oblgaons The Partnerships pohicy 15 to keep the majonty of ity berrowings at fixed rates of mtcrest by entenng
HMito nterest gate swaps, m which the Partnership agrees to exchangg, at speafic ntervals, the diffrence between fixed and vanable
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon nottonal prncapal amount  These mstruments are used to hudge
underlying debt obligations At 31 Dxcember 2015, after taking into account the effict of mtrcet rate hedging, 47 6% (2014 85 7%)
of the Partnership’s barrowings arc ata fixcd ratc of mterest

The, following demonatrates how much the Partneeship's profit beforc tax would mcrease/(decriase) due to a posstble change in
Lurbor and Libor interest rates, with all other vanables held constant

2015 2014

€'000 €'000

1.unbor/Libor +50bps 2,269 3,595
lunbor/Libor -50bp~ (2,269) (3,108)

Foreign exchange rate nsk

I‘oreign cxchange rate nisk 15 the mk of the Partmership's net asset value changing due to a movement in foresgn exchange rates

As a result of real estate mnvestments in the UK and Poland, the Partnershup’s balance shoct can be affected by movements n Sterling
/ Furo and Zloty / Curo <xchange rates  The Partnership mutigates the effect of its foragn curtency exposure by borrowing n
Sterling and purchase of currency forwards
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conunued)

b) Foregn exchange rate nsk (continued)

The Parmershup’s currency exposure to Stething has been hedged by purchasing currency forwards which protect aganst
depreciations 1n currency It 1s the Partnership®s policy to negonate the terms of the hedge denvauves 1o match the terms
of the hedged item <o as to maximise hedge effecoveness The Partnership doos not designate 1w dertvatives as hedges m
accordance with 1AS 39, therefore 1t does not hedge account in accordance wath the provisions of IAS 39

At 31 December 2015 the Partnership held currency forwards to protect agamst movements in Sterling / Euro exchange
rates  The followang tables set out the terms of these contracts

As at 31 Decuenber 2015 Buy Maruney Exchange Rate
£000
13,359 30/09/2016 07394
16,255 30/09/2016 07561
7,095 30/09/2016 07561
1,700 30/09/2016 07561
9,320 30/09/2016 07102
64,180 17/03/2016 08728
9,000 29/01/2016 08605
1,572 17/03/2016 08393
122,481
As ar 31 December 2014 Buy Matunty Exchange Rate
£000
13,359 28/05/2015 08345
16,255 13/10/2015 08706
7,095 15/10/2015 08706
1,700 15/10/2015 08691
9,320 30/11/2015 08701
64,180 17/03/2016 08728
9,000 29/01/2016 08605
1,572 17/03/2016 08393
122 481

The following demonstrates the sensinvity of the Partnership's profit/(loss) before tax to a possible change 1n Sterling /
Euro exchange rates, with all other varables held constamt

2015 2014

€'000 €'000

GBP strengthens by 2 5% 9,706 1,417
GBP weakens by 2 5% 9.912) (1,225)
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5

<)

d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conunued)

Credit nsk

Credit nisk 1s the nk that 2 counterparty will not meet 1t~ obliganons under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financal loss The Partnershap 1s exposed to credic nsk from ity leasing activities and from
its financing actuvines, including deposits wath banks and financial insututions and denvatves

The Partnership enters into leases only with recogrused, crecitworthy thurd parues It 1s the Partnership’s policy
that all tenants are subject to credut venficavon procedures In addmon, recetvable balances are monttored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Partnership's exposure to bad debts 15 not significant The maxirnum
exposure 15 the carrying amount of wade and accounts recervable as disclosed 1n note 17 and there are no
syznificant concentrations of credit nk within the Partnershup  For rransactions that are not denominated i the
measurement currency of the relevant opcrating umit, the Partnership does not offer credit terms without the
specific approval of the General Partner

Liqudity nsk

The Partnership monttors its ask of a shortage of funds using detatled cash flow monitonng run at both a local
entity level and on a consoldated basis These reports track projected cash flows from both operations and
capital events and the costs associated with maintairung the investment portfolio The Parmership's objective 1»
to ensure that the level and matunity of bank debt borrowings used to finance the mvestments matches the
forecast operatonal or capital cash flows from its mvestment portfoho

The following 15 an analysis of the contractual undicounted cash flows payable under financial babalities,
denvative financial instruments and exchange forwards as at the balance sheer date

As at 2015 Within 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years Total

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Secured bank loans (281,008)  (117,210) - - (398,218)
Denvanves (16,553) - - - - (16,553)
Credit line facihty (28,130 - - - - (28,130}
Trade and accounts payables (33,014) (217} - - - (33,231)
Total financial habthnes (358,705) (117,427) - - - (476,132)
Plus effect of funare years' intetest and finance costs {14,232}

(490,364)

As at 2014 Within 1year  1-2years 2-3years 3-4years  4-5years Total

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Secured bank loans (254,060  (276,971) - - - (531,031}
Denvanves {11,381) (13,134) - - - {24,515)
Credit bine facibity 17,422 - - - - 17,422
Trade and accounts payables (212,207) (24,483) - - - (236,690)
Total financial habihnes (460,226)  (314,588) - - - (774,814)
Plus effect of future years' mterest and finance costs (16,852}

(791,666)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conunued)
Capatal Risk Management

The Partnership manages its capital structure 1n accordance with the requirements set out n the Limted Partnership
Agreement, namely that all long term borrowings made by the Partnershup during the investment peniod shall not
exceed 75 0% of the gross asser value (defined as the fair value of the partnership assets) and after the investment
pertod they shall not excced 70 0% of the gross asset value Thesc mtios are checked on an mdividual and cumulative
rato bass, always being mundful that the property values can decrease as well as increase

The primary objective of the Partnership's caprtal management 18 to ensure a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios 1n order to support 1ts entines and maximise investor value

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

Farr Value Esomaton under IFRS 13 requres the Partnership to clasafy for disclosure purposes far value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy thart reflects the syguficance of the inputs used 1n making the measurements
on 1ts financial assets The fair value huerarchy has the following levels
e Level (1) quoted pnces (unadjusted) i active markets for identcal assets or habiities,
e Level (Z) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obscrvable for the asset or labiliry,
erther directly (that 15, as prices) or indirectly {that 1, denived from prices), and
*  Level (3) mnputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The fair value of derivanves are classified by the Partnershup as Level 2

The fair value of the denvatves 1s calculated by Chatham Financaal, an mdependent interest rate and currency sk
advisor

The fair value of interest rate hedges are determined by estimating the future fixed and floating cash flows, based on
market forward curves, and discountng the expected cash flows to the valuanon date

The far value of foreign exchange contracts 1n calculated using market spot exchange rates, forward poinrs and
diveount factors

PROPERTY OPERATING EXPENSES 2015 2014

€'000 €000
Property management fees (2,928) (3,784)
Property taxes (864) {1,253)
Scrvice charge expenses (15,100) {22,4306)
Non recoverable operatng expenses (3,690) {4,362)
Other operating expenses (7,281) ~ {4,605)
Total property operating expenses (29,863) (36,440)

All property operating expenses anse from rental income generaung investment property

Under the Limtted Partnershup Agreement, the Managers are obligated to provide property management services to
the Partnership  In rurn, the Managers have subcontracted these services to thard party property companies
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8 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2015 2014
€'000 €'000
Management fees (5,065) (7,698)
Managers' performance fee - {2,432)
Accounung fees (1,115) (1,350)
Audit fees {369) (353)
Legal and professtonal fees (2,000) (3,699)
Valuation fees (144) {164)
Bad Dcbrts (509) (503)
Other cxpenses (2,895) (3.421)
Total administrative expenses (12,097) (19,626)
9  GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 2015 2014
€000 €000
Project Alzes (228) (275)
Project Jeeves 686 4,713
Project tapas 7,038 -
Project Butlin Rew (36t) -
Project German Office (88) -
‘Total gamn on sale of investment properues 7,047 4,438
10 GAIN ON SALE OF SUBSIDARIES 2015 2014
€000 €000
Project Greenway 7,233 -
Project litan - (2121
Project Cake - (1,865)
Project German Office . 12,827
Project Snow - 38,102
Total gain on sale of subsidianes 7,233 46,943
11  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 2015 2014
€'000 €'000
Finance mcome
Bank interest income 590 188
Gam on fair value of denvanve financial mstruments 6,868 8414
loreign exchange gan - 327
Total finance Income 7,458 8,929
Finance costs
Interest on bank loans (36,943) (36,094)
lLos~es on fair value of denvative financial instruments (9,573) (10,543)
loreign exchange losses (115) -
Total finance costs (46,631) {46,637)

Dunng the year finance costs of €25 4 mihon (2014 €9 2 mulhon) were capitahised to mvestment propernes i the
course of construction
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31 DECEMBER 2015 (continued)

12 TAXATION

I'he major components of the tax charge are

Current tax
Deferred tax
Total reported 1n the Consohdated Statement of Comprchensive Income

2015 2014
€000 €'000
(16,375) (6,172)
14,064 (12,990)
(2,311 (19,162)

A reconailmnon of the rax charge appheable to the accounting profit before tax ar the avirage tax rate to the tax charge at the

Partniership’s cffeetive tax mate for the year ending 31 December 2015 and 2014 15 as follows
Profit before tax

lax calculated at a weighted average rate for the Parmership of 12 0% (2014 14 0%)
Permanent differences

Unrecognised deferred tax on movement in fair value of denvatives

Unrecognised deferred tax on movement in fair value of mvestment properties

lax losses uthsed 1n the year

lax gams / (losses) not tecogrused i the year

Othcr temporary diffurences

Prior year adjustment

I'he effective tax rate for 201515 3 1% (2014 11 4%)

DEFERRED TAX

75,208 167,791
(9,025) (23,478)
(4,450) (1,679)
852 495
17,624 10,728
(608) (306)
7,714 (593)
(12,816) (3,914)
(1,602) (415)
(2,311) (19,162)

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Posinon

2015 2014
€'000 €'000
Reflected in the Nnancial Statements as follows
Deferred tax habititres (8,531) (27,449)
Deferred tax habilines net (8,531} (27,449)
I'he movemecent 10 deforred tax asscts and labilines durmg the year 1~ a» follows
Ansing from fair
value movement
on Investment  Ansing from
Properties other items Total
€000 €'000 €'000
Deferred tax
As at 1 January 2015 (32,475} 5,026 (27,449)
Credied to the Consolidated Statement of Comprchensive Income 14,064 - 14,064
Deferred tax hiabibszes derecognised following sale of subsidianes 4,854 - 4,854
As at 31 December 2015 (13,557) 5,026 (8,531)
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment Investment Investment Total

propertics  propertics 1n properties

the course of  classified as

construcuon  held for sale
€'000 €'000 €'000 €000
Balance as at 1 January 2015 744,656 150,949 170,862 1,066,467
Capital cxpenditure 16,138 - - 16,138
I enant mcontives 2,331 - - 2,331

Disposals
Investment proportces (22,422) (161,770) (184,192)
imvestment properties sold by sale of subsidiary (209,920} (209,920)
I ransfers between categones (311,288) 311,288 -
Change m fair value of investment propertes (5,481) 58,971 6,176 59,666
Foreign exchange differcnces 27473 - - 27,473
Balance as at 31 December 2015 451,407 - 326,556 777,963
Balance as at 1 January 2014 1,191,905 105,921 181,903 1,479,729
Capital expenditure 17,6006 35,026 - 52,632
Tenanr incentives 1,554 - - 1,554
Disposals

investment proprtics (45,491) - - (45,491)
tnvestment properties sold by sale of substdiary {355,443) - (181,903) (537,346)
| ransfers between categories {160,100) - 160,100 -
| ransfers from trading properties - - 10,762 10,762
Change m farr value of investment propertics 71,591 10,002 - 81,593
I oreign exchange differences 23,034 - - 23,034
Balance as at 31 December 2014 744,656 150,949 170,862 1,066,467

The change i fair value of mvestment propertics credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprechensive Income during the

year s as follows

2015 2014

€'000 €'000

Change in fair value of investment propertes 59,666 81,593
Realised gan on disposal of mvestment properties 7,047 4,438
66,713 86,031
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14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conunued)

The fair value of the Partncrship’s investment properties and investment properties under construction ar 31 December
2015 has been arnved at on the basis of valuations carried out as at that date by CB Rachard Elhs (CBRE) and by way of
directors' valuatons carrted out at that date by the Manager

The fair value of completed investment property and mvestment proportics under construction has been determuned on
a market valu¢ bass, in accordance with the RICS Valuanon Standards (Red Book, 9th Ediion) published by the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors, 6 January 2014 The valuattons are prepared on an aggregated ungeared basis The
valuanon models m accordance with those recommended by the Internatonal Valuation bStandards Comumuttee have
been applied and are ¢consistent with the principles 1n IFRS 13

Dircctor's valuanons are performed internally by the Partnership’s internal valuation department Internal methods are
aligned with those used by the external valuers

Investment properties measured at fair value i the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position are categonsed by
level according to the significance of the inputs used 1 making the measurements and as such are categorsed a- Level

3

The Partnership's policy 1s to recogruse wansfets into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the
event or change 1n circumstances that caused the transfer There were no transfers in or out of Level 3 far value
measutements for mvestment properties dunng the year

Investment propertes are valued on a hughest and best use bawus For all of the invesunent propernies the current use 1s
considered to be the hughesr and best use

Sensitivity analysis to sigmificant changes in unobservable inputs within Level 3 of the luerarchy

The sigmificant unobservable inputs used 1n the farr value measurement categonsed within Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy of the entity’s portfolios of investment property are

1) Esomarted Rental value (ERV) - the rent at which space could be let i the market conditions prevailing at the date
of valuation

2) Rental growth - the esumated average increase in rent based on both market estimanons and contractual

indexatons
3) Long-term vacancy rate - the ERV of the expected long term average structural vacant space divided by ERV of

the whole property Long-term vacancy rate can also be determined based on the percentage of estimated vacant
space divided by the total lettable area

4)  Yield - the equivalent yield 1s defined as the internal rate of return of the cash flow from the property, assuming a
rse to ERV at the next review, but wath no further rental growth

5) Discount rate - rate used to discount the net cash flows generated from rental activites during the period of
analysis (esumated up to 10 years)
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conunued)

Significant increases/{decreases) in the ERV (per ~qm p a) and rental growth p a 1n 1solation would result in a
sigruficantly gher/ Jower) fair value measurement Sigruficant increases/{decreases) 1n the long-term vacancy
rate and discount rate {and exit or yeld) 1n 1solatton would result 1n 2 significantly lower/ (tugher) fair value

measurement

Generally, a change in the assumpuon made for the ERV (per sqm p a } 1 accompanued by
1) A sumilar change 1n the rental growth p a and discount rate {and exat yreld)
2) An opposite change 1n the long term vacancy rate

Sigruficant unobservable inputs in Level 3 valuattons are as follows

Class Input

Retail Yield

Office Yield

Retail Net Income (€/5qm)
Office Net Income (€/5qm)
Retail ERV (€/Sqm)

Office ERV (€/5¢m)

Fair Value of Investment Properties

Property

Alizes

Berlin Restdental
Boxes

Centrum
Greenway

Jecves

Sapphure

Tapas

15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

At | January 2015
At 31 December 2015

Mimmum Maximum
539% 1177%
7 40% 8 06%
102 79 238 60
158 60 158 60

98 47 22010
193 03 193 03
2015 2014
€000 €000
81,000 102,480
- 153,219
217,935 197,724
90,654 88,000
- 150,949
11,602 20,289
233,472 218,806
143,300 135,000
777,963 1,066,467
2015 2084
€'000 €'000
1,600 1,600
1,600 1,600

Investment 1n subsidiary included within non-current assets represents the Partnership's investment in EPISO

Luxembourg Holding Sarl
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2015 2014
16 TRADING PROPERTIES €'000 €'000
At 1 January 2015 - 14,506
Disposals tn year - (3,981)
Surplus/(Impairment charge) in year - 237
Transfer to Investment Properues held for sale - {10,762)
At 31 December 2015 - -

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Consolidated Partnershap
2015 2014 2015 2014
€'000 €000 €'000 €'000
Trade and accounts recervable 2,979 9,435 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 445 8,159 - -
Recoverable VAT 1,886 2,246 18 6
Cash held on deposit 29,732 25,130 29,732 24,588
Other recesvables 24 847 9,098 8 -
Restricted cash 14,316 23,391 - -
Total 74,205 77,460 29,758 24,594

All trade and other recervables are classed as current

Trade and accounts recervable are typically due within 30 days and include rental debtors, which are a combination of
non 1interest-beanng and interesr-beanng amounts as derermuned by the lease agreements Trade and accounts
recervables 1n connecnon with rents recetvable are all conudered past due as the majonty relate to rents recetvable
from tenants which are payable 1n advance

Trade and accounts recervable mclude a provision for bad debts of €1 3 million (2014 €2 3 mulhion)

Recoverable VAT wmcludes an amount of €19 mullton (2014 €1 3 milion) in relation to VAT recoverable VAT 15
expected to be recerved from the tax authonties within 3 months of fiing VAT returns

Non-current cash held on deposit, which represents amounts reserved relanng to the managers' performance fee, 15
classified under other recervables due to it not bemng considered hquid

Current cash held on deposit relates to rent deposit held on Project Alizes
Other recervables relate manly to tenant deposits

Restacted cash include cash in bank accounts of €11 3 mulhon (2014 €8 2 mullion) that 15 set astde for future capex
works 1n accordance with debt requrements under external loans and €3 mulbon (2014 €5 3 mullion) 1n respect of
balances held by property managers

29




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (continued)

18

19

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Consolhdated Assets Liabihties Total Assets Liabihices Total
€'000 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Caps - - - 1 - 1
Swape - (623) (623) - (8,412) (8,412)
Currency Forwards 670 (15,930) (15,260) - (16,103) (16,103}
Total 670 (16,553) (15,883) 1 (24,515) (24,5149)
Split as follows
Current 670 (16,553) (15,883) - {11,381) (11,381)
Non-Current - - - 1 (13,134} {13,133)
670 (16,553) (15,883) 1 (24,515) (24,514)
Partnership 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Assets Liabilhities Total Assets Liabihnes Total
€000 €000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Caps - - - - - -
Swaps - - - - - -
Currency Forwards 670 {15,930) {15,260) - {16,103} (16,103)
Total 670 (15,930) (15,260} - (16,103) (16,103)
Spht as follows
Current 670 (15,930) (15,260} - - -
Non-Current - - - - (16,103)  {16,103)
670 (15,930) (15,260) - (16,103) (16,103)

The Partnership does not apply hedge accounting in accordance with IAS 39 Nevertheless, interest rate caps, swaps,

swaptions and currency forwards are part of economic hedge relanonships Interest rate swaps and caps are used to hedge

the mterest payment of varable debt mstruments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Consolidated
2015 2014
€'000 €000
Cash at bank 19,658 118,268
Total Cash and cash equivalents 19,658 118,268

Partnership

2015 2014
€000 €'000
6,433 43,531
6,433 43,531

Cash at bank earns interest at floanng rates based on daly bank deposit rates The carrying value of cash and cash

equivalents approximates to fair value due to 1ts relatively short matunty
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Consohdated Partnershup
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2015 2014 2015 2014
€'000 €'000 €000 €'000
I rade and accounts payablc (6,882) (18,280) (308) (310)
Advance of ~alc proceeds - {160,230) - -
Manager' performance fee payable (1,447) (13,951) (1,447) {13,951)
Accruals & diferred income (12,381} (19,104) (143) (334)
Interest payable (2,695) (1,842) {3) N
VAT payable (2,152) (1,997) - -
Other payables (7,674) (21,287) - -
Total trade and other payables (33,231) (236,691) (1,901) (14,604)

Sphit as follows

Current (33,014) (212,207) (1,901) {14,604)
Non-current (217) (24,484) - -
(33,231} (236,691) (1,901) (14,604)

I'rade and accounts payable arc non-interest-beanng and are normally ~ettled on 30 day torms

Managers' performance fee payable relates to the foo duc to the Speenal Limited Partner Refer to notes 3(c) and 25 for
further detail

Accruals & difurred income include a provision of €1 0 million (2014 €N1l) of sales cost for Greenway and €7 7 milhon
prepaid rent (2014 €6 8 mullion)

Interest payable 1s normally scited guarterly throughout the financial year

Currcnt other payables are non-intercst beanng and have a term of less than twedve months Of thiy amount €1 7 milhon
rcdates to secunty deposits i project lapas (2014 €20 muthon) and €1 7 million (2014 €18 milhon) rdlates to secunty
deposits 1n projeet Alses

The catrymng value of tradc and other payables approximate to fair value due to thar relatively short marunity

21 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Consohidated
Effective Matunty As at 31 As at 31
Interest Dccember  December
Secured bank loans Rate 2015 2014
Alires 500% Dec 2016 {45,150) (49,835)
Boxes [ & 11 4 61% Feb 2016 (62,407) (58,761)
Boxes [T {Coventry) 4 28% Apr 2016 (42,910) (41,680)
Boxes IV 5 50% Fcb 2016 (26,293) (24,482)
Tapa- 4 50% Jun 2016 (47.252) (67,382}
Centrum 280%  Dcc 2016 (56,996) (62,163)
Sapphire 4 67% Jul 2017 (117,210} (113,374}
Greenway N/A Dec 2015 - (61,511)
Greenway meszaning N/A Dec 2015 - (17,000)
EPISO I P Credit ine (short term faciity) 030% Jan 2016 (28,130} (17,422)
(426,348) (513,610)

Partnership

LPISO LP Credrt ine (short term facility) Jan 2016 (28,130) (17.422)
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21 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

Consolidated Partnership

2015 2014 2015 2014

€'000 €000 €'000 €000

Total interest-beanng loans and borrowings (426,348) (513,610) (28,130) (17,422)
Split av foltow

Current (309,138) {236,638) {28,130) (17,422)

Non-current {117,210) (276,971) - -

(426,348) (513,610) (28,130) (17,422)

All loans are denomnated 1n 1 uro, with the exception of the Jeeves, Boxes and Sapphire loans which are
denomunated n Sterhing

Secured bank loans

I'hc bank loans other than the credit hne facility, are sceured over investment propernies, with a combined fair value
of €778 0 milion (2014 €1,066 5 milion) l:ach portfolio 1s financed by spccific debt, none of which 15 eross
collateralised with another portfolio, nor has recourse to the Furopaan Property Investors Speaal Opportumities LP

All non-current bank loans attract floaung rate mterest which v fixed usng hedming mnstruments  The effective
interest rate reported above does not take into account these hadging instruments as the accounting ~tandards require
them to be farr valued through the Con-olidated Statement of Comprehenuve Income

Secured short-term facihity

I'hes facihty provides a line of credn for the short-term funding and guarantee requiremcnts of the Parmership,
secured on promote escrow balances of the Partnership  The maximum amount available on the credit Iine 1 €300
mullion (2014 €20 2 milion) 1he margin for dravangs under the facility 1 charged at 30 bps over eunbor As at 31
December 2015 €28 1m (2014 €17 4m) was utlised, leaving €1 9m (2014 €2 8m) avalable to draw down

22 LOANS TO AND FROM SUBSIDIARIES

At the year end, LPISO T P had the followang loans wath s subsdianes 2015 2014

€000 €'000
Alires 58,018 55,342
Berlin Ress 3 75
Boxes 166,052 151,365
Centrum 11 1
Gruonway 1,455 900
Holding 16 38 38
Jeeves 3,339 7,904
J.ux Holding Sarl 64,525 121 630
Pukka (Dartford) 26 544
Rugby - 500
Sapphtre 149,575 134,484
lapas 61,403 65,700
Wall 6,295 5,927
Womble 68,253 51,904
Less Provision on loans to subsidiarnes (28,658} -
Total loans to subsidianes 550,335 596,324

Spht a~ follows
Current 82,463 125461
Non-current 467,872 470,863

550,335 596,324




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
{Limited Partnershup No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2015 (contmued)

22 LOANS TO AND FROM SUBSIDIARIES (contnued)

2015 2014

€'000 €'000

Boxes (41,254) (38,914)
Pukka (Dartford) - 6}
Snow (881) (t,160)
Sapphure (38,591) (36,401)
Womble (70,866) {66,732)
Total loans payable to subsidianes (151,592) (143,208)

All loans from subsidianes are non-current

23 LIMITED PARTNERS' CAPITAL

The capital contmbutions from the Limited Partners, net of retumed capital, 1s €345 1 rmlhon (2014 €407 6m)

The uncalled and returned capital at 31 December 2015 was €442 9 mullion (2014 €380 4m)

24 LIMITED PARTNERS' CURRENT ACCOUNT

The Limuted Partners’ current account surplus of €46 2 milion (2014 surplus of €403 mullion) shows the

accumulated profit attoburable ro LPs at the year end

25 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The consolidated financial statements mnclude the finaneial statements of Buropean Property Investors Special

Opportumties Limited Partnership and the subsidianes bsted below

Equrey
interest
Incorporated in Poland Incorporated 1n Isle of Man
Dormeo Investments SP Zoo 896% EPISO CPH GP Limited
EPISO CPH Nomunee Limited
Incorporated in The Netherlands EPISO CPH Lirmtted
EPISO Netherlands Holding BV 100% EPISO CPHLP
EPISO Boxes Holding Lirmited
Incorporated 1n England EPISO Boxes Limited
Sapphure Burnley Nominee Limuted 99 25%  EPISO Boxes GP Limited
Sapphure Harlow Nomunee Limuted 9925% EPISO Boxes LP
Square 3 Lid
Incorporated 1n France Trangle 3 Lid
SNC EPISO Alizes Dolet Holding 160% Bndgend 3 Ltd
SNC EPISO Alizes Monge Holding 100%  Coventry 3 Led
SNC EPISO Alizes Pans Quest Holding 100%  Killy Property Ltd
SNC EPISO Alizes Grand Ouest Holding 100% D12 Ldd
SNC EPISO Alizes Abreuvoir Holding 100% EPISO Wimbledon Linmuted
SNC EPISO Alizes Fillol Holding 100%

Equry

nterest

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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25 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Equny Egquiy
mfercst 1aterest
Incorporated in France Incorporated 1n Isle of Man
SCI Breguct 70% EPISO Wimbledon GPP Limated 100%
SCI EPISO Alires Pans Ouest 98% EPISO Wimblcdon Nominee Limited 100%
SCI 11150 Alizes Grand Ouest 98% EPISO Wimbledon 1 P 100%
SCI LPISG Alizes Monge 98% Sapphire Holding Lid 99 25%
SCI PISO Alres Arbreuvorr 98% Sapphire QAC Lid 99 25%
SCILPISO Alives dllol 98% Jeeves GP (ToM) Limueed 60%
SCI LPISO Alizes Dolet 98% Jeeves | 1nited Partnership 60%
SAS I'PISO Alzes MDB 98% Jeeves Holding T 1mand 60%
Jeeves Investments Limuted 60%
Jeeves Inveatment § anuted Partnership 60%
Incorporated 1n Luxembourg Jeeves GP Larmared 60%
1.P1SO Luxembourg HHolding Sart 100% Jeeves Nomunees 1 irmted 60%
1 PISO Jecves Sard 100% Jecves Caprtal [ imated 60%
[P1SO I*rance Sasl 100% Jeeves Capital Limated Partnership 60%
1-P1SO IHoldmg 11 Sarl 100% Jeeves GI* 2 1 imuted 60%
FPISO Dartford Sasl 100% Jeeves Nomunecs 2 Lumuted 60%
EPISO Office 13 Saxl 100%
I'PISO lapas Sarl 100% Incorporated in Spam
EPISO Cake Sarl 100% Altadena Invest SL 100%
EP150 Jantar Sarl 100% Seadale SL 100%
1LIPISO C/ Sard 100%
1P1SO CPIT Sarl 100%
EPISO Boxes Sarl 100%
1+ PISO Wimblcdon Sasl 100%
EP150 Holding 15 Sarl 99 25%
Sapphire QAC Holding SFNC 99 25%
I P1SO Berlin Sarl 98%
Tegder Hoefe Berbin Sard 98%
Watheplats Berlin Sarl 98%
Fradnch Ibort 1 Sarl 98%
Frerdnch lebert 2 Sarl 98%
LLP1SO Berlin Officc Sarl 98%
PISO Office 12 Sard T0%
Snow Crystal Sarl B0%

The equity interest in ongoing subsidaries 1s unchanged from the year ended 31 December 2014

Enuty with significant influence over the Partnership

ALW Lurope I LP 1s appointed 2~ the Manager of the Partnership and Tristan Capital Pareners LLP 1s appointed as the
sub-advisor of the Parmershtp  Under they appomntment, the Managers has powcr and duttes 1n accordance wath section
4 of the Limuted Partnership Agreement




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
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25

TRANSACTTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Terms and conditions of transactions wath related parties

The Partership was charged €0 2 milion (2014 €2 2 million) by ALW Lurope LLP 2nd €4 9 milion (2014 €3 9 million) by
Instan Capual Partners LLP 1 respect of management fees  The ousstanding balance due from the Partership ar 31
December 2015 was €0 4 milion (2014 €0 3 nulhon)

At 31 December 2015 a performance fee of €1 4m {2014 €13 9m) payable to the Special Lunited Partner was accrued,
caleulated in accordance wath Secoon 611 of the Fuad's Lamuted Partnership Agreement Manager™s performance feo income
of €69m (2014 €2 4m xpense) was recognised 10 the Consolidated Statement of Comprchensive Income for the year then
ended Payments of €5 3m (2014 €8 5m) were made to the Special Limited Partner on disposal of Berlin Residental

I'he Partnership has entered to certan finanang armngements with Natwas (the parent and controlling party of ALW
Furope LLP) - As atr 31 December 2015 the Partnership had term loans with Nanxs secured agamst the Alives portfolio The
amount outstanding at 31 December 2015 15 €455 mudbion (2014 €49 7 mullion)  The Partnership also enters meo 2 small
number of denvative contracts with Natixts  [he fair value of such contracts at 31 December 2015 15 €153 mulhion Lability
(2014 €168 mullton labthty) These armangemants are entered mto mn the ordinary course of busmess and are transacted on
normal cumercm] rerms

I'he following projects, Alires, Centrum and Sapphire have entered mnto joint vennare partner agreements with the following
partners, Finanaere St Andrews, Mayland Real Lstate sp 7 0 o and Addington Capatal Investments LLP respectvely  The
jomt venture partners funding contnbution a~ ac 31 December 2015 1> €4 2 midbon (2014 €22.6 millhon)

35




EUROPEAN PROPERTY INVESTORS SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES LP
(Limited Partnership No LP12726)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2015 {contmnued)

26 CONSOLIDATED PARTNERS' CAPITAL AND CURRENT ACCOUNTS

Suchung Pensiownfonds ABP

Gothaer Lebonsy enacherung AG {former ASL)
Gothacr Lcbensversichering AG

llmannen Mutual Penston Insurance

Aberdeen Indirect Property Partners 11

Furopean Real | state Gmbl] & Co Nr 1 KG
CPISO (SLP) LP

Franklin Iempleton Management Janembourg S A
Gothaer Krankem crachorung AG

R+V Lebensiersicherung AG

General Lebemy eracherung AG

Third Swedish Natonal Penvion | und

West Midlands Metropolitan Authonties Pension Fund
Central Kranheny arsichorung AG

Cosmon Lebenssersicherung AG

R+V Allgemeine Versicherung AG

Partners Group Access 3621 P

Westport Real Estate Imeston

Real Estate Fund Of Funds [T KY

Real Estate Dbt & Secondanes KY
AachenMunchener Lebensy erichorung AG

AIPP Pooling I S A

Gothaer Allgemeine Versicherung AG

Gothaer Pensionshasse AG

Hannoscr Re | uro Real I'state Holdings Gmbi
Mussoun Dept of 1 ransportauon and Highway Patrot | mployeey’ Retirement System
Suchung Dow Pensioenfonds

Property Class Portfohe 3 GmbH & Co KG

I uroben Lafe & Penvion Lamuted

At 31 December

Partners' capital commitment

Partners’ capatal at 1 January 2015
Partners’ capatal called dunng the year
Fquity returned duning the year

Pastners' uncalled and returned capital
At 31 December 2015

Consohdated Consolidated
2015 2014

€000 000 000 €00}
Caputal Current Captal Current
65 687 8,789 77,592 7 6801
21,896 2929 25 804 2,56
21,896 2929 25 864 2,500
21 896 2929 25 864 2,560
17,516 2344 20,6M 2,48
16,203 2,168 19,139 1,894
15,327 2,049 18,105 1,792
13137 1,758 15518 1,536
13,137 1,758 15518 1,536
13,137 1,758 15,518 1,536
10,948 1,465 12932 1,280
10,948 1,465 12,932 1,280
10,948 1,465 12,932 1,280
8,758 1,172 10,346 1024
8,758 1,172 10,346 1,024
8,758 1,172 10,346 1924
8,758 1,172 10,346 1024
8,758 1,172 10,346 1024
7,554 011 8,023 883
6,547 876 7733 765
4,379 586 5173 512
4,379 586 5173 512
4,379 586 5,173 512
4,379 586 5,173 512
4,379 586 5173 512
4,379 586 5173 512
4,379 586 5173 512
2,627 351 3,104 307
1,226 164 1,448 143
345,073 46,170 407,618 40,344
2015 2014
€000 €000
407,618 551,650
- 6,000
(62,535) (150,032)
345,073 407,618
442927 380,382
788,000 788,000
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27

28

29

30

FUTURE OPERATING LEASE REVENUE

The future aggregate mimmum rentals recetvable under non-canccllable operating leases are as follows

2015 2014

€'000 €'000

No later than 1 year 55,132 52,367
Fater than 1 year no later than 5 years 162,866 152,335
Later than 5 years 198,761 211,395
416,759 416,097

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

An SPA was signed on 21 January 2016 to scll Project Centrum for €92 0m An 1 Ol was signed on 1 I+cbruary 2016 to

sdl most of Projeet Alives for €76 8m

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

lhe Partneeship has, in the ordinary course of business, commutments under meerest rate and foragn cxchange
mstruments redating to the econonuc hedging of underlying debt obliganons and investments 1 non-1-uro opirations

ropectively burther mformation 1 st out in note 52 and 5b

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING ENTITY

I he Partneeship does not have an ultimate controlling entity No indvidual 1 mnited Partner or General Partner ha the

capacity to excrene control over the Partnership
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